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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District
Blythe, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial accompanying findrste&ements of the business-type activities aeditluciary activities
of Palo Verde Community College District (the “Dist”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2@hd,the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively qoise the District’s basic financial statementdisted in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparation aidpiesentation of these financial statementscicoaance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetéshStates of America; this includes the desigmlementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to theppration and fair presentation of financial stateta¢hat are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud omrerro

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on thfésancial statements based on our audit. We cdaducur audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedejpt the United States of America and the starsdapplicable to
financial audits contained Bovernment Auditing Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Unitedes. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &udibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintrecial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaimlia evidence about the amounts and disclosurgbdrfinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend audliter's judgment, including the assessment ofritles of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whetler td fraud or error. In making those risk assesds) the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Dissigireparation and fair presentation of the finahstatements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate irittamstances, but not for the purpose of expngsain opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal contrélccordingly, we express no such opinion. An aatfib includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies usedthadreasonableness of significant accounting estisnmade by
management, as well as evaluating the overall ptasen of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basrsour audit opinions.

17072 Silica Drive, Suite 101 * Victorville * @lifornia 92395
(760) 241-6376 * Fax (760) 241-2011
messnerandhadley.com



The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referredabove present fairly, in all material respedtg tinancial
position of the business-type activities and tldeidiary activities of Palo Verde Community Colle@gstrict, as
of June 30, 2017, and the changes in net positioh &here applicable, cash flows for the year thieded in
accordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetehiStates of America require that the requiregkupentary
information, such as the management’s discussicghaaalysis on pages 4 through 11, the SchedulettodrO
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Funding Progrespame 42, the Schedule of the District’'s Proportiena
Share of the Net Pension Liability on page 43, gnredSchedule of the District's Pension Contributiam page
44 be presented to supplement the basic finantzitdraents. Such information, although not a pathe basic
financial statements, is required by the GovernaleAitcounting Standards Board, who considers ib&oan
essential part of financial reporting for placirfietbasic financial statements in an appropriateatipgal,
economic, or historical context. We have appliedtain limited procedures to the required supplgargn
information in accordance with auditing standardsegally accepted in the United States of Amendaich
consisted of inquiries of management about the ousthof preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s res@s to our inquiries, the basic financial statasjeand
other knowledge we obtained during our audit oftihsic financial statements. We do not expresspanon or
provide any assurance on the information becauselithited procedures do not provide us with sudfiti
evidence to express an opinion or provide any asser

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formiminions on the financial statements that colledyiv
comprise the District’s basic financial statemerfse supplementary information listed in the Talfl€ontents,
including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federaladds, as required by Title 2 U.€ode of Federal
Regulations(CFR) Part 200Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pritefpand Audit Requirements of
Federal Awardds presented for purposes of additional analysia not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information, including the Schedid Expenditures of Federal Awards, is the resjlity
of management and was derived from and relatestijir® the underlying accounting and other recarsisd to
prepare the basic financial statements. Suchrimdtion has been subjected to the auditing procedapplied in
the audit of the basic financial statements anthteadditional procedures, including comparing egxbnciling
such information directly to the underlying accangtand other records used to prepare the basindial
statements or to the basic financial statementsigbbres, and other additional procedures in acocelavith
auditing standards generally accepted in the UnB&ates of America. In our opinion, the suppleragnt
information is fairly stated, in all material resp® in relation to the basic financial statemest& whole.



The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance witkbovernment Auditing Standardse have also issued our report, dated Decemhe&7, on
our consideration of Palo Verde Community Collegstfixt's internal control over financial reportirggnd on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisionslafs, regulations, contracts, and grant agreemamisother
matters. The purpose of that report is to desdfilgescope of our testing of internal control ofieancial

reporting and compliance and the results of thstirntg, and not to provide an opinion on internahtool over

financial reporting or on compliance. That regsréin integral part of an audit performed in acaom with
Government Auditing Standarda considering the District's internal control ovéinancial reporting and
compliance.

777@¢mw £ %40/7,/ LELF,

Messner & Hadley, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Victorville, California
December 21, 2017



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

This section of Palo Verde Community College Ddtsi (the “District”) annual financial report prege our
discussion and analysis of the District’s finangiaiformance during the fiscal year ended Jun@@Dy7.

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis provides aargew of the financial position and activities thie Palo
Verde Community College District (the “District"pff the years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 20is5.
discussion has been prepared by management anidl $fgoread in conjunction with the financial stagats and
notes thereto which follow this section.

Palo Verde Community College is an open accesdjcpetiucational district, dedicated to providingcebence
in education, cultural enrichment, economic develdept and services to assist members of the comyntmit
meet their educational goals. People of all ages l@ackgrounds attend early morning to late everind
weekends to take advantage of a wide variety ofseoafferings.

Enrollment Highlights

During 2016-2017, total full-time equivalent stutkeincreased approximately 6.52% for both credd aon-
credit courses. Credit and non-credit FTES, aloity wther workload measures, are the basis foDtisgrict's
State apportionment.

Trend of full-time equivalent students as repodadhe annual report:

Full-Time Equivalents (FTES)

2500

2000

1500

1000 -

500 -

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017




PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Financial Highlights

This section is to provide an overview of the Dgts financial activities.

As required by the adopted accounting principlas, @nnual report consists of three basic finarstetements
that provide information on the District as a whole

» The Statement of Net Position

» The Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changet Position

» The Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position presents the adssdities and net position of the District as tbie end of the
fiscal year and is prepared using the accrual wHsascounting, which is similar to the accountbragis used by
most private sector organizations.

The difference between total assets and totalliliglsi is one indicator of the current financialndition of the
District; the change in net position is an indicabd whether the overall financial condition haspnoved or
worsened during the year. Assets and liabilitiess generally measured using current values. Onableo
exception is capital assets, which are statedsérical cost less accumulated depreciation.

The Net Position is divided into three major categd The first category, net investment in cdpitssets,
provides the equity amount in property, plant andigment owned by the District. The second categer
expendable restricted net assets. These net assadvailable for expenditure by the District, butst be spent
for purposes as determined by external entitiegisletion and/or donors that have placed time appse

restrictions on the use of the assets. The fintdgory is unrestricted and is available to therlisfor any

lawful purpose of the District.

The Statement of Net Position, as of June 30, 20@7June 30, 2016, is summarized below:

2017 201¢ Net Chang
ASSETS
Current assets $ 13,862,695 $ 12,816,096 $ 1,046,599
Non-current assets 62,328,804 63,838,972 (1,510,168)
Total Assets 76,191,499 76,655,068 (463,569)
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 3,656,669 2,618,038 1,038,631
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 2,527,454 4,001,062 (1,473,608)
Non-current liabilities 43,549,262 37,712,684 5,836,578
Total Liabilities 46,076,716 41,713,746 4,362,970
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 719,130 1,202,477 (483,347)
Total Net Position $ 33,052,322 $ 36,356,883 $ (3,304,561)




PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

June 30, 2017

» Approximately 99% of the cash and cash equivatemtent assets is cash deposited with the Riversid
County Treasurer’s Office. The Statement of Céslvd contained within the financial statements es
greater detail regarding the sources and usessbfarad the net increase (decrease) in cash.

» The majority of the accounts receivable balasdeom Federal and State sources for grant antdesnént
programs.

» Capital assets are the net historical value d Jduildings, and equipment less accumulated degiren.
As of June 30, 2017, the District owned capitabtssf $62,029,628. The breakdown of this totamatue
can be found in Note 6 of the financial statements.

» Accounts payable and accrued liabilities constdtpayables to vendors, accrued payroll and benefi
$1,825,545.

* Noncurrent liabilities consist of compensated emlegs, other postemployment benefit obligation, net
pension liability, General Obligation Bonds, andt@ieates of Participation.

* Unrestricted net position totaled ($4,982,085).

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Resition

The change in total net position presented on thee@ent of Net Position is based on the activigspnted in
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Chanljes Rosition. The purpose of this statement {ésent the
operating and non-operating revenues earned (whegoeived or not) by the District, the operatingl anon-
operating expenses incurred (whether paid or nothe District, and any other revenues, expensgasgnd/or
losses earned or incurred by the District.

Operating activities are those in which a diregtrpant or exchange is made for the receipt of secdoods or
services. As an example, tuition fees paid bystielent are considered an exchange for instrudtsaraices.
This activity is considered an operating activiffhe receipt of State apportionments and propertgg do not
include this exchange relationship between payrapedtreceipt of goods or services. These revemubsedated
expenses are classified as hon-operating activities



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

A summary of the Statement of Revenues, ExpensésChanges in Net Position, for the years ended 30n

2017 and June 30, 2016, is shown below.

2017 2016 Net Change
Revenues
Operating revenues $ 5,705,993 $ 5,661,707 44,286
Non-operating revenues 17,315,753 17,571,627 (255,874)
Other revenues - 243,054 (243,054)
Total Revenues 23,021,746 23,476,388 (454,642)
Expenses
Operating expenses 20,904,926 18,244,287 (2,660,639)
Non-operating expenses 1,282,222 2,320,765 1,038,543
Depreciation 1,818,689 1,757,070 (61,619)
Total Expenses 24,005,837 22,322,122 (1,683,715)
Excess (deficiency) (984,091) 1,154,266 (2,138,357)
Net Position - Beginning 36,356,883 35,202,617 1,154,266
Adjust for restatement (2,320,470) - (2,320,470)
Net Position - Ending $ 33,052,322 $ 36,356,883 $ (3,304,561)

* Enroliment fees are generated by students whoeaidents of California and residents of neighgprkrizona
counties who have approved reciprocity agreemedts. of state tuition plus enroliment fees are gmidall non-
resident and foreign students.

» Non-capital grants and contracts are primarilgsth received from federal and state sources artl insthe
instructional program.

» Personnel costs are 64% of operating expenseashwicludes all funds and depreciation. The bedaof
operating expenses is for supplies, other serviaed, capital outlay items below the capitalizattbreshold,
insurance, utilities and depreciation expense.

e State apportionments, non-capital consists ofteStapportionment and other apportionments. State

apportionment represents total general apportioheemed less regular enroliment, less propertgstax

* Local property taxes are received through the ithueController’'s Office for Riverside County andar®s
Bernardino County. The amount received for prgpdexes is deducted from the total State general
apportionment that is calculated by the StatelerDistrict.

* State taxes and other revenues consist primafritate lottery revenue.
* Functional expenses are included in Note 12 effittancial statements.

7



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Operating Expenses (by natural classification) jeab

2017 2016 Net Change
Salaries $ 11,034,761 $ 8,518,425 $ (2,516,336)
Benefits 3,422,143 3,129,415 (292,728)
Payments to students 1,312,882 1,482,810 169,928
Supplies, materials, and other ex 4,796,192 4,761,547 (34,645)
Utilities 338,948 352,090 13,142
Depreciation 1,818,689 1,757,070 (61,619)

Total Operating Expenses $ 22,723,615 $ 20,001,357 $ (2,722,258)

» Compensation consists of salaries, fixed cha(@estrict contributions to retirement systems, wen
compensation and unemployment insurance, Socialr®eand Medicare), and health and welfare besefit
borne by the District.

» Supplies, materials, other operating expensessandces include expenditures for software, refese
books, software licensing and consultants, re@aicsmaintenance of buildings and equipment.

» Utilities consist of electricity, telephone, watheating and waste disposal.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows provides informatiopualsash receipts and cash payments during thel fisar.
The statement also helps users assess the Dgstaiaiiity to generate positive cash flows, meeigaiions as
they come due, and the need for external financing.

The Statement of Cash Flows is divided into fiveegpaThe first part reflects operating cash flamsl shows the
net cash used by the operating activities of therdt. The second part details cash receiveshdéor-operating,
non-investing, and non-capital financing purposd$e third part shows cash flows from capital aathted
financing activities. This part deals with the ltassed for the acquisition and construction of tzh@ind related
items. The fourth part provides information fronvesting activities and the amount of interest ikt The
last section reconciles the net cash used by dpgrattivities to the operating loss reflected loa Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Positioa.ndthcash used by the District for operating #ids for
the year ending June 30, 2017, was $13,422,414.



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

The Statement of Cash Flows, for the years endeel 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, is summarized below:

2017 2016 Net Change

Net cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities $ (13,422,414) $ (12,538,450) $ (883,964)
Non-capital financing activities 17,326,261 17,617,125 (290,864)
Capital financing activities (2,642,867) (5,852,375) 3,209,508
Investing activities 76,918 53,201 23,717
Net decrease in cash and cash equi 1,337,898 (720,499) 2,058,397
Cash balance, beginning of year 12,069,936 12,790,435 (720,499)
Cash balance, end of year $ 13,407,834 $ 12,069,936 $ 1,337,898

The primary cash receipts from operating activitees from student enrollment fees and tuition, Falde
State and Local grants and contracts. The primash outlays are payments of wages, benefits, vendo
and students related to the instruction program.

» General apportionment is the primary source ai-capital financing. The three main components of
general apportionment are State apportionmentgptppaxes and enrollment fees.

» The primary use included in capital and relatadhricing activities is the purchase of capital &sse
(building improvements and equipment).

» Cash earned from investing activities is inteezshed on cash in bank.

The District’s Fiduciary Responsibility

The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for @@n amounts held on behalf of the students, clablsdmnors for
student loans and scholarships. The District'sdidry activities are reported in separate Statéesnafr-iduciary
Net Position and Changes in Fiduciary Net Positibhese activities are excluded from the Distriotlser
financial statements because we cannot use theses ag finance operations. The District is resjima for
ensuring that the assets reported in these furedssad for their intended purposes



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Capital Assets

A comparison of capital assets, net of depreciat®osummarized below:

2017 2016 Net Change
Land and construction in progress  $ 1,010,614 $ 1,010,614 % -
Buildings and equipment 79,080,353 78,791,595 288,758
Accumulated depreciation (18,061,339) (16,269,659) (1,791,680)
Total Capital Assets $ 62,029,628 $ 63,532,550 $ (1,502,922)

Debt

At June 30, 2017, the District had $44,251,17bigtterm debt. A comparison of long-term debuisisiarized
below:

2017 2016 Net Change

Bonds payable $ 17,374,587 $ 18,001,792 (627,205)
Certificates of participation 14,155,000 13,930,000 225,000
Loan payable - auto 15,303 20,446 (5,143)
Net pension liability 12,278,401 6,975,972 5,302,429
OPEB 144,161 28,429 115,732
Compensated absences 283,719 242,952 40,767

Total Long-term Liabilities $ 44,251,171 $ 39,199,591 $ 5,051,580

10



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2017

Economic Factors

Palo Verde Community College once again saw areas® in enrollment over the previous year. As 8t pa
recent years, as other community colleges exceth@@dcapacity, Palo Verde College was able to igiev
educational services in those areas.

All industries, including community colleges, conte to experience increased costs for servicegspetially
costs for employee benefits, insurance and uslitBeginning 2002-2003, the District began making
contributions to PERS for its employees and resirébe PERS rate, for the year ending June 30,, 2045
13.888%.

All community colleges will be facing higher STR&@s in the future due to recently passed legisiaiihe
rates, ending June 30, 2015, were 8.88% and haddbalele at that rate for many years. The STRS fat the
year ending June 30, 2017, was 12.58%.

The District changed its approach to budget dgorent in 2011-12, which included not using the egdi
balance as part of the budget, dividing up accduittaof the budget monitoring, and creating a mnansparent
approach to observing and monitoring the budgeg. District continued with this practice in the deyenent of
the 2016-17 budget. The District restored cutsipresly negotiated with employee groups. The debtieen
refinanced by the district which will affect thedbict during 2016-17 and beyond.

Management will continue a close watch over resito react to any internal or external issueand when
they may arise.

Contacting the District's Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide ouizens, taxpayers, and creditors with a generatviee of the
District’'s finances and to demonstrate the Dissietccountability for the money it receives. Ifuybave any

guestions about this report or need additionalniore information, contact the District’'s Office &usiness
Services, Palo Verde Community College, One Coll2dee, Blythe, California 92225.

11
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position-Primary Government
June 30, 2017

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses

$ 13,407,834

289,230
165,631

Total current assets

Non-Current assets:

Other postemployment benefits other than
Notes receivable
Fixed assets, net

13,862,695

299,176
62,029,628

Total non-current assets

62,328,804

TOTAL ASSETS

76,191,49

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on refunding
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions only

717,646
2923

Total deferred outflows

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt

3,656,669

1,825,545
701,909

Total current liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

2,527,454

43,549,262

TOTAL LIABILITIES

46,076,716

DEFERRED INLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - pensions only

719,130

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets
Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Other activities
Unrestricted

30,976,983

3,943,905
1,195,558
1,917,961
(4,982,085)

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 33,052,32

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme

12



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes Poligibn-Primary Government
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES

Tuition and fees $ 1,820,374
Less: Scholarship discounts and allowances (1,210,663)
Net Tuition amd Fees 609,711
Grants and contracts
Federal 979,775
State 3,617,910
Local 498,597
Total Operating Revenues 5,705,993

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries 11,034,761
Benefits 3,422,143
Payments to students 1,312,882
Supplies, materials, and other expenses 4,796,192
Utilities 338,948
Depreciation 1,818,689
Total Operating Expenses 22,723,615
OPERATING INCOME/(LOSS) (17,017,622)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES/(EXPENSES)
State apportionments, non-capital 13,822,783
Local property taxes 2,357,896
State taxes and other revenues 1,073,538
Investment income, net 61,536
Interest expense (1,282,222)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 16,033,531
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (984,091)
NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning 36,356,883
Prior period adjustment (2,320,470)
Net Position - Beginning, as restated 34,036,413
Net Position - Ending $ 33,052,32

See the accompanying notes to the financial statesme
13



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows-Primary Government
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Tuition and fees $ 757,907
Federal grants and contracts 979,354
State grants and contracts 3,825,925
Local grants and contracts 498,597
Payments to suppliers (4,833,817)
Payments for utilities (338,948)
Payments to/on-behalf of employees (12,998,550)
Payments to/on-behalf of students (1,312,882)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (13,422,414)
Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities
State apportionments and receipts 13,822,783
Property taxes 2,317,172
State taxes and other revenues 1,186,306

Net cash provided by (used in) by non-capital financing activities 17,326,261

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities

Principal paid on capital debt (14,601,907)
Interest paid on capital debt (1,987,223)
Purchases of capital assets (208,737)
Proceeds from issuance of capital debt 14,155,000

Net cash provided by (used in) capital financing activities (2,642,867)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investment income 69,672
Collection from notes receivable 7,246
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 76,918
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,337,898
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of year 12,069,936
End of year $ 13,407,83

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
14



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows-Primary Government, Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Reconciliation of operating loss to cash used in operating activities

Operating loss $ (17,017,622)
Depreciation and amortization 1,818,689
Pension expense 1,432,872
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 325,951
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (114,832)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (23,971)
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 156,499
Net cash used in operating activitie $ (13,422,414

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
15



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statements of Fiduciary Net Position
June 30, 2017

Scholarship
ASB and Loan
Trust Fund Trust Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,096 61,619
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,09¢ $ 61,61¢
LIABILITIES
Due to student groups $ 4,096 $ 61,619
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 4,09¢ $ 61,61¢

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

16



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

ADDITIONS
Other local revenues

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Supplies and materials and other operating expense
services

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Scholarship
ASB and Loan
Trust Fund Trust Fund
$ 4,959 111,789
4,959 111,789
4,343 112,879
616 (1,090)
3,480 62,709
$ 4,09¢ $ 61,61¢

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 1 — ORGANIZATION

Palo Verde Community College District (the “District”) aspolitical subdivision of the State of California and

provides educational services to the local residents of theusuling area. The District consists of one

community college campus located in Blythe, California and onegmitampus located in Needles, California.
The District operates under a locally elected seven-mebard of Trustees form of government, which

establishes the policies and procedures by which the Dispetates. The Board must approve the annual
budgets for the General Fund, special revenue funds, capitalcpfands, and proprietary funds, but these
budgets are managed at the department level.

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

While the District is a political subdivision of the Statds not a component unit of the State in accordance with
the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASRBidification Section (Cod. Sec.)
2100.101. The District is classified as a state instrumentality under InfRwenue Code Section 115.

The decision to include potential component units in the reportitity evas made by applying the criteria set
forth in generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and BS&8d. Sec. 2100.101 as amended by GASB
Cod. Sec. 2100.138. The three criteria for requiring a legally sep@etxempt organization to be presented as
a component unit are the “direct benefit” criterion, the “emti#at/ability to access” criterion, and the
“significance” criterion. As defined by accounting principleseyally accepted in the United States of America
and established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Boafthatheial reporting entity consists of the
primary government, the District.

Basis of Presentation and Accounting

For financial reporting purposes, the District is considerespecial-purpose government engaged only in
business-type activities as defined by GASB. Under this mdlgelDistrict’s financial statements provide a
comprehensive entity-wide perspective of the District’'s fimgnposition and activities. Accordingly, the
District’'s financial statements have been presented ubmgtonomic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revaneggecognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the obligation has been incurred. All significant ineaeggransactions have been eliminated.

Fiduciary funds for which the District acts only as an agetust are not included in the business-type activities
of the District. These funds are reported in the Statemdfitla€iary Net Position and Statement of Changes in
Fiduciary Net Position at the fund financial statement level.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered tasheon hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or fems the date of acquisition. Cash equivalents also

include unrestricted cash with county treasury balances fpopes of the Statement of Cash Flows. Restricted
cash and cash equivalents represent balances restrictegtdimal sources such as grants and contracts or
specifically restricted for the repayment of capital debt.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)

Investments

The District records its investment in Riverside County Jueaat fair value. Changes in fair value are reported
as revenue in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changefasiblon. The fair value of investments,
at June 30, 2017, approximated their carrying value.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets arise when restrictions on their use elthagiormal understanding of the availability of the
asset. Such constraints are either imposed by creditorsibctmts, grantors, or laws of other governments or
imposed by enabling legislation. Restricted assets ardfiddssn the Statement of Net Position because their
use is limited by enabling legislation, applicable bond covenantspther laws of other governments. Also,
resources have been set aside to satisfy certain requisenfetite bonded debt issuance and to fund certain
capital asset projects.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from tlierge State and/or local governments, or
private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowablenditpees made pursuant to the District's
grants and contracts. Accounts receivable are recorded nstimmhid uncollectible amounts. The District
recognized for budgetary and financial reporting purposes any amoGBitatefappropriations deferred from the
current fiscal year and appropriated from the subsequent fisaalfge payment of current year costs as a
receivable in the current year.

Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent payments made to vendors and othergides shat will benefit periods beyond
June 30.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisiiorated capital assets are recorded at their estimated
fair value at the date of donation. For equipment, the Bisticapitalization policy includes all items with a unit
cost of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of greateptigapear. Buildings, as well as renovations to
buildings, infrastructures, and land improvements, that significamthgase the value or extend the useful life of
the structure are capitalized.

Depreciation of capital assets is computed and recorded Isjréight-line method over the following estimated
useful life:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings 5C
Land improvemen 1C
Equipment and vehicl 8
Technology equipme 3
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)

Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will §omae report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement elemeteferred outflows of resources — represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and sonatilbe recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditures) until then. The Districtwadtems that qualifies for reporting in this
category. First is the deferred charge on refunding reported goteenment-wide Statement of Net Position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference nyingrvalue of refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shadrtae life of the refunded or refunding debt. The
second item is related to pensions reported in the Distrig-8tatement of Net Position. This represents the
effects of the net change in the District’s proportion ofdbiéective net pension asset or liability and difference
during the measurement period between the District's contributimb its proportionate share of total
contributions to the pension systems not included in pension expendéy id.éise District contributions to the
pension system (PERS and STRS) subsequent to the measurement date.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position wdlretimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statementesie— deferred inflows of resources — represents an
acquisition of net position that applies to a future period afidnai be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The District has one item thatifipgafor reporting in this category. The item is
related to pensions reported in the District-wide StatemeNebfPosition. This represents the effect of the net
change in the District's proportion of the collective net penBaility and difference during the measurement
periods between the District’'s contributions and its proportionadeesof total contributions to the pension
systems not included in pension expense.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reghantthe entity-wide financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are recognizediasilidy of the District as compensated
absences in the Statement of Net Position. The DisaiEiaccrued a liability for the amounts attributable to load
banking hours within accrued liabilities. Load banking hours sbo$ihours worked by instructors in excess of
full-time load which they may carryover for future paid time off.

Sick leave benefits are accumulated without limit for eawpleyee. Accumulated employee sick leave benefits
are not recognized as a liability of the District. The iiss policy is to record sick leave as an operating
expense in the period taken since such benefits do not vest nor is payment phalvedler, unused sick leave is
added to the creditable service period for calculation oEreént benefits when the employee retires and within
the constraints of the appropriate retirement systems.

Unearned Revenue

Tuition and fees received prior to June 30 for classes andapnegoffered in the subsequent fiscal year are
reported as unearned revenue. Cash received for Federal sndgp8tdal projects and programs is recognized as
revenue to the extent that qualified expenditures have beemeidcudnearned revenue is recorded to the extent
that cash received on specific projects and programs exceeds qualiesaiigures.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)

Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities include bonds and notes payable, compensated eysand OPEB obligations with
maturities greater than one year.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferredowmstfbf resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and pension expense, informadionthe fiduciary net position of the Public
Employees Retirement Plan (PERS) and the State Teach@eni®at Plan (STRS) and additions to/deductions
from PERS and STRS’ fiduciary net position have been detetminethe same basis as they are reported by
PERS and STRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including re@indmployee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. kEwvessare reported at fair value.

Net Position

GASB Statements No. 34 and No. 35 report equity as “Net &usdind represents the difference between assets
and liabilities. The net position is classified according to iragogestrictions or availability of assets for
satisfaction of District obligations according to the following gates:

Invested in capital assets, net of related defdthis represents the District’s total investment in capital gsset
net of associated outstanding debt obligations related to tdapstal assets. To the extent debt has been
incurred but not yet expended for capital assets, such amoumtstaneluded as a component of invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.

Restricted— Net position is reported as restricted when there are tiomsaimposed on their use, either
through enabling legislation adopted by the District, or throughrreadteestrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The @ifitst applies restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestrictectessare available.

Unrestricted— Net position that is not subject to externally imposed constraibnrestricted net position
may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Bodrdustees or may otherwise be limited by
contractual agreements with outside parties.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avdibahlee, it is the District's practice to use restricted
resources first and the unrestricted resources when they are needed.

State Apportionments

Certain current year apportionments from the State are basearionsvfinancial and statistical information of
the previous year. Any prior year corrections due to a néegilen will be recorded in the year computed by the
State.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)

Property Taxes

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on pragedfyJanuary 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1. Unsecured propertyasxgmyable in one installment on or

before August 31. The County of Riverside bills and colldmsaxes on behalf of the District. Local property

tax revenues are recorded when the County notifies the Distrilce availability of the revenues. A receivable

has been accrued in these financial statements to reflecnthentiof property taxes receivable as of June 30,
2017.

Board of Governors Grants (BOGG) and Fee Waivers

Student tuition and fee revenues and certain other revenugspanted, net of allowances and fee waivers
approved by the Board of Governors through BOGG fee waiverseirstdtement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position. Scholarship discounts and allowancedseaddference between the stated charge for
goods, and the goods and services provided by the District and the ahaiustgaid by students and/or third
parties making payments on the students’ behalf. To the exégrieéhwaivers have been used to satisfy tuition
and fee charges, the District has recorded a scholarship discouribaratheé.

Federal Financial Assistance Program

The District participates in federally funded Pell Grants, SEOG gyrantl Federal Work-Study programs, as well
as other programs funded by the Federal government. Finaidctal students is reported as other revenue. The
amount reported as other revenue represents the portion of aid shatow@led to the student in the form of cash.
These programs are audited in accordance with Titlé.& Federal RegulationfCFR) Part 200Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles andifRequirements for Federal Awards.

On-Behalf Payments

GASB Cod. Sec N50 requires that direct on-behalf payments fofitsemied salaries made by one entity to a
third party recipient for the employees of another, legallpasse entity be recognized as revenue and
expenditures by the employer government. The State of Caifonakes direct on-behalf payments for

retirement benefits to the State Teachers Retirement System ohdietlaCommunity Colleges in California.

Classification of Revenues

The District has classified its revenues as eitiparating or non-operating. Certain significanteraue
streams relied upon for operations are recordesbasoperating revenues as defined by GASB Cod. Sec.
C05.101, including state appropriations, local priyptaxes, and investment income. Nearly allhef t
District’s expenses are from exchange transactions.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)
Revenues are classified according to the following criteria:

Operating revenues and expensesOperating revenues and expenses include activities that thave
characteristics of exchange transactions, such as: (1) studeom and fees, net of fee waivers and
allowances, (2) sales and services of auxiliary enterpi@ses(3) most Federal, State and local grants and
contracts and Federal appropriations. All expenses are consimjezeating expenses except for interest
expense on capital asset related debt.

Non-operating revenues and expenses Non-operating revenues include activities that have the
characteristics of nonexchange transactions, such as Pel,qyits and contributions, and other revenue
sources described in GASB Cod. Sec. C05.101, such as State apiprugpeatl investment income. Interest

expense on capital related debt is the only non-operating expense.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity wenerally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affechdl@ts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Interfund Activity

Interfund transfers and interfund receivables and payablesimieated within the primary government funds
during the consolidation process in the entity-wide financial statements

New Accounting Standards

The District has adopted all current Statements of the Gmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) that
are applicable. At June 30, 2017, the District implemented the followingtaadesds issued by GASB:

» GASB Statement 73 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions &elated Assets That Are not
within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amensitte@ertain Provisions of GASB Statements 67
and 68, effective for the year ending June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement 74,Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits édtithan Pension Planhs
effective for the year ending June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures”, effective for the yemaled June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement 78 Pension Plans Provided through Muliple-Employeribed Benefit Pension Plans”,
effective for the year ended June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement 79,Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Pargifs”, effective for the year
ended June 30, 2017.

GASB Statement 80,Blending Requirements for Certain Component Unitd-amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14’effective for the year ended June 30, 2017
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

Future Changes in Accounting Standards

GASB has issued Statement 7Bctounting and Financial Reporting for Postemplogtigenefit Other Than
Pension% which improves accounting and financial reporting by state an local gogatarior postemployment
benefits other than pensions. It also improves the information providedteyast local governmental
employers about support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. Thetsstiirrently studying the
Statement and plans on adoption if and when required, which will generallythe fiune 30, 2018 financial
statements.

GASB has issued Statement 81, “Irrevocable Split-Interest Agre€imehtsh improves accounting and
financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements byiging recognition and measurement guidance
for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreembetDi§trict is currently studying the
Statement and plans on adoption if and when required, which will generallythe fiune 30, 2018 financial
statements.

GASB has issued Statement 8Rghsion Issues-an amendment of GASB Statemerng3d No. 68, and No. 737,
which addresses certain issues that have been raised with resgattntests No. 67, 68 and 73. Specifically,
this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the presentatiorobfrpiated measures in required
supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and thredraaif deviations from the guidance in
an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, atite(8lassification of payments made by
employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requireméis.District is currently studying the
Statement and plans on adoption if and when required, which will be for th8Qu2@L8 financial statements.
GASB has issued Statement 8Ggfttain Asset Retirement Obligationsthich will enhance comparability of
governments by establishing uniform criteria for governments to memgnd measure certain asset retirements
obligations’ (ARO), including obligations that may not have been previoaplyrted. An ARO is a legally
enforceable liability associated with the retirement of a tdagiapital assets. The District is currently studying
the Statement and plans on adoption if and when required, which will be fonth8@ w2018 financial
statements.

GASB has issued Statement No. 8iduciary Activities”, which will enhance consistency and comparability by
(1) establishing specific criteria for identifying activitiést should be reported as fiduciary activities and (2)
clarifying whether and how business-type activities should repartfithgciary activities. The focus of the

criteria is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets fifitlogary activity and (2) the beneficiaries
with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. The District is currentigying the Statement and plans on adoption
if and when required, which will be for the June 30, 2018 financial statements.

GASB has issued Statement No. 85ntnibus 2017”"which will enhance consistenay the application of
accounting and financial reporting requirements. This Statement addaegseety of topics including issues
related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and tippliaad postemployment
benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits (OPEB)). The Dsstuctently studying the Statement
and plans on adoption if and when required, which will be for the June 30, 2018 finaateialkestits.

GASB has issued Statement No. 8Beftain Debt Extinguishment Issuesihich will increase consistency in
accounting and financial reporting for debt extinguishments by establishiognuigiuidance for derecognizing
debt that is defeased in substance, regardless of how cash and otherynasseta placed in an irrevocable trust
for the purpose of extinguishing that debt were acquired. The requireménitssStfatement also will enhance
consistency in financial reporting of prepaid insurance related tolughtdas been extinguished. The District is
currently studying the Statement and plans on adoption if and when required, Whitehfar the June 30, 2018
financial statements.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contin ued)
Future Changes in Accounting Standards (continued)

GASB has issued Statement No. 87edses” which will increase the usefulness of government’s financial
statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets anitidislbdr leases that previously were not
classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resouoceiosvs of resources based on the
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single modelderdeaounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings f the right to use an underlggag. aunder this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-toease lasset, a lessor is required to recognize a
lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhdreietpivance and consistency of
information about governments’ leasing activities. The Disicuirrently studying the Statement and plans on
adoption if and when required, which will be for the June 30, 2021 financial stateme

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Summary of Deposits and Investments

As provided for by the Education Code, Section 41001, a sigrifmamion of the District’s cash balances of
most funds is deposited with the Riverside County Treasureth&mpurpose of increasing interest earnings
through County investment activities. The California Government Code re@iatdornia banks and savings and
loan associations to secure the District’'s deposits by pledgimgrnment securities as collateral. The market
value of pledged securities must equal 110 percent of an agelepgdsits. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure an agency's deposits by pledging first tteed mortgage notes having a value of 150
percent of an agency’s total deposits and collateraloissidered to be held in the name of the District.
Substantially all cash held by financial institutions is entirely idwr collateralized.

Cash and equivalents, as of June 30, 2017, consist of the following:

District Fiduciary
Cash in County Treasury $ 13,380,205 $ -
Cash on hand and in be 22,62¢ 65,71¢
Cash in revolving fund 5,000 -
Total cash and cash equivale $ 13,407,83 $ 65,71t

Policies and Practices

Under provision of the District’'s investment policy, and in adaace with Section 53601 and 53602 of the
California Government Code, the District may invest in thiéoWing types of investments: The District is
authorized under California Government Code to make direct meess in local agency bonds, notes or
warrants with the State; U.S. Treasury instruments; exgidtState warrants or treasury notes; securities of the
U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; coainpenger; certificates of deposit placed with
commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchesesme repurchase agreements; medium-
term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interestdsbyediversified management companies, certificates of
participation, obligations with first priority security; and collatieed obligations.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements

June 30, 2017

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

Investment in County Treasury

In accordance with the Budget and Accounting Manual, the Distadtains a significant portion of its cash in
the Riverside County Treasury as part of the common investpmml. These pooled funds are carried at cost
which approximates fair value. The fair market value ofDigrict’s deposits in this pool, as of June 30, 2017,
as provided by the pool sponsor, was $11,970,991, with an averagetynaf 1.15 years. Interest earned is
deposited quarterly into participating funds. Any investment logsegraportionately shared by all funds in the
pool.

General Authorizations

Limitations as they relate to interest rate risk, cregk, and concentration of credit risk are indicated in the
schedule below:

Maximumnr Maximumnr Maximumr
Authorizec Remaining Percentac Investmer
Investment Typ Maturity of Portfolic in One Issue

Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrs 5 year None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Wart 5 year None None
U.S. Treasury Obligatiol 5 year None None
U.S. Agency Secuiritit 5 year None None
Banker's Acceptan 180 day 40% 30%
Commercial Pap: 270 day 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Depc 5 year 30% None
Repurclase Agreemer 1yea None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreem 92 day 20% of bas None
Mediurr-Term Corporate Not 5 year 30% None
Mutual Fund N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funt N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pas-Through Securitie 5 year. 20% None
County Pooled Investment Ful N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAl N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Poc N/A None None

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in marketrdsterates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The District does not have a formal investmertyptiiat limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increadergst rates.
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NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued)
Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investmentmatlfulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.

Government Code Sections 16430 and 53601 allow governmental emtifi@gest surplus moneys in certain
eligible securities. The District has no investment policy thatdviouther limit its investment choices.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event bhak failure, the District’s deposits may not be returoed t
The District does not have a policy for custodial credit,rislt all public funds are invested in bonds or
governmental backed (collateralized) securities at 110% on the amaiepasit.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributethe magnitude of a government’s investment in a
single issuer. The investment policy of the District carstaio limitations on the amount that can be invested in
any one issuer beyond the amount stipulated by the California GoverQude. District investments that are
greater than 5 percent of total investments are in eithext@nnal investment pool or mutual funds and are
therefore exempt.

NOTE 4 — RECEIVABLES

Receivables, at June 30, 2017, consist of the following and are considégetiidelin full:

Federal State Other Total
General fund $ - $ 47,701 $ 228,411 $ 276,112
Child development fund 7,358 5,760 - 13,118

$ 7,35¢ $ 53,46 $ 228,41 $ 289,23(

NOTE 5 — NOTE RECEIVABLE
In August 2013, the District sold property located on Spring Stre®lyithe, California for $400,000. The

District received a down payment of $80,000 and a note receiva#320,000. The note is payable, principal
and interest at 5%, in monthly installments of $1,871. The note matures 2088y,
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The following provides a summary of changes in capital assets for thengsd June 30, 2017:

Balance Balance
Business-Type Activities July 01, 2016 Additions Deductions  June 30, 2017
Historical Cost
Building $74,667,137 $ -8 - $ 74,667,137
Construction in progress 84,477 - - 84,477
Equipment 2,629,514 282,089 - 2,911,603
Land 926,137 - - 926,137
Site improvements 1,286,659 - - 1,286,659
Vehicles 208,285 6,669 - 214,954
Total historical cost 79,802,209 288,758 - 80,090,967
Accumulated depreciation
Building 13,290,704 1,609,026 - 14,899,730
Equipment 2,193,287 125,740 - 2,319,027
Site improvements 668,566 45,496 - 714,062
Vehicles 117,102 11,418 - 128,520
Total accumulated depreciat 16,269,659 1,791,680 - 18,061,339
CAPITAL ASSETS, NE $63,532,55 $(1,502,922 % - $62,029,62
NOTE 7 — ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accounts payable, at June 30, 2017, consisted of the following:
Business-Type Fiduciary
Activities Funds Total
Interest $ 275,742 $ $ 275,742
Payroll 46,921 46,921
Construction 107,030 107,030
Vendor payable 1,395,852 1,395,852
$ 1,825,54! $ $ 1,825,54!
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June 30, 2017

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund Receivables and Payables (Due To/Due From)

Interfund receivable and payable balances arise from interfumshtrions and are recorded by all funds affected
in the period in which transactions are executed. Interfundtgctivithin the governmental funds and fiduciary
funds, have been eliminated respectively in the consolidationgzr@tehe basic financial statements. Balances
owing between the primary government and the fiduciary funds are not ekdhinahe consolidation process.

Interfund Operating Transfers

Operating transfers between funds of the District are usetl) tm@ve revenues from the fund that statute or
budget requires to collect them to the fund that statute or buegeires to expend them, (2) move receipts
restricted to debt service from the funds collecting theipecéo the debt service fund as debt service payments
become due, and (3) use restricted revenues collected in thealJemad to finance various programs accounted
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations. a@pgrtransfers within the funds of the
District have been eliminated in the consolidation procesansiers between the primary government and the
fiduciary funds are not eliminated in the consolidation process.

NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, are sizeuras follows:

Balance Due in Long-term
July 01, 2016 Additions Deductions One Year Balance

Business-Type Activities
Other postemployment

benefit obligation (OPEB)  $ 28,429 $ 115,732 $ - % - % 144,161
Compensated absences 242,952 40,767 - - 283,719
Net pension liability 6,975,972 5,302,429 - - 12,278,401
Auto loan 20,446 - 5,143 5,362 9,941
Certificates of participation 13,930,000 14,155,000 13,930,000 470,000 13,685,000
General obligation bonds payable 16,784,879 - 666,764 226,547 15,891,568
Premiums and discounts 544,069 (42,249) 24,878 - 476,942
Accretion 672,844 106,686 - - 779,530

$ 39,199,591 $ 19,678,365 $ 14,626,785 $ 701,909 $ 43,549,262

The compensated absences are paid by the fund for which the employsréss saé paid from.
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Certificates of Participation

In September 2006, the District approved certificates of particip@COPSs) in the amount of $18.6 million, to
assist in providing timely cash flows during the constructionopeoi the Physical Education Complex and the
chiller plant until State reimbursements were receiveue frojects were completed in the Fall of 2008 and were
100% State reimbursed. The additional proceeds from the @ad#fiof participation were used for computer
upgrades for the District and other capital renovations on the Blythe adteBleampuses.

The District refinanced these Certificates of Partidgpain July 2008 taking advantage of lower interest rates.
The District entered into these Certificates of Panditton for working capital for construction projects, the Fine
and Performing Arts Complex and Management Information Systemsodhe delay of payments for these
projects approved by the State and the possibility that costs for somagwajetd exceed appropriated funds.

The District's intentions for budgeting for repayment of theddigations were that upon receipt of
reimbursement by the State, the monies were to be set asidénterest bearing account. Monthly payments
would be made from the interest bearing account leaving the balamontinue to earn interest; it was also the
District’s intention to not use the funds for backfill of general funds

In March, 2016, the District retired $15,130,000 of the outstanding certificategiofgagion through the
issuance of 2014 Series A General Obligation Bonds and a $6,000,000 contributidmefiDistrict.

In December, 2016, the District issued $14,155,000 of 2016 Refunding Certificatesaypdteoh. The COPS
were issued to refund the remaining portion of the 2008 Certificates of patito. The bonds require principal
and interest payments through August 1, 2045. Annual interest rate for these boadmary0%-4.0%.

The annual debt requirements on these certificates, payable & &QJ017, are as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 470,000 $ 555,560 $ 1,025,560
2019 500,000 524,988 1,024,988
2020 520,000 504,988 1,024,988
2021 545,000 484,188 1,029,188
2022 565,000 462,388 1,027,388

2023-2027 3,195,000 1,959,590 5,154,590

2028-2032 3,775,000 1,368,064 5,143,064

2033-2037 4,585,000 564,200 5,149,200

$ 14,155,000 $ 6,423,966 $ 20,578,966
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

General Obligation Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds of up to $6,000,000 were approved by electioneér2005 and were to be used to
finance real property improvements to the District's Needégapus. In October 2005, the District issued the
first series on these available bonds amounting to $2,946,254. ThetDistk a second drawdown in
September 2006, amounting to $3,053,625. The improvements on the Needles campus were corthediall

of 2009. All debt repayments will be made by the County from property tax revenues.

In March, 2016, the District issued $3,470,000 of 2016 General Obligatiomd®ey Bonds. The bonds were
issued to refund a portion of the 2005 bonds and a portion of the 2006 bonds. Theehuindd principal and
interest payments through August 1, 2035. Annual interest ratesek® bonds range from 2.0%-4.0%. The
refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisitiae jmd the net carrying value of the old debt of
$58,873. This difference, reported in the accompanying financiair&ate as a deferred loss on refunding, is
being charged to operations through the year 2035 using the straight line method.

In March, 2016 the District issued $12,500,000 of 2014 Series A General Obligation Bdwdsonds were
issued to refund a portion of the Certificates of Participation, dsag/@rovide for the acquistion, construction,
and improvements of additional educational facilities. The bonds requirgpfiand interest payments through
August 1, 2045. Annual interest rates for these bonds range from 2.0%-4.0%.

A portion of the net proceeds, after issuance costs of $291,970, (along with & Buostiiibution of $6,000,000)
were used to purchase U.S. Government securities for the purpose of paydedt requirements of $15,130,000
of the outstanding Certificates of Participation. As a result, aopoofithe Certificates of Participation are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those certificates hashemred from the government-wide
statement of net assets. The advance refunding resulted in a défeetween the reacquistion price and the net
carrying of the old debt of $692,535. This difference, reported in the accompéingimgial statements as a
deferred loss on refunding, is being charged to operations through the year 203beustrggght line method.

The annual debt requirements on these bonds payable, as of June 30, 2017,lavesas fol

Year Ended Accreted
June 30, Principal Interest Interest Total

2018 $ 226,548 % 545,763 $ 43,453 $ 815,764
2019 232,942 539,688 52,058 824,688
2020 300,000 532,113 - 832,113
2021 325,000 522,738 - 847,738
2022 410,000 511,712 - 921,712

2023-2027 2,095,092 2,381,196 724,908 5,201,196

2028-2032 2,583,533 2,070,756 1,721,466 6,375,755

2033-2037 2,470,000 1,703,097 - 4,173,097

2038-2042 3,485,000 1,170,500 - 4,655,500

2043-2047 3,990,000 334,600 - 8,649,200
Total $ 16,118,115 $ 10,312,163 $ 2,541,885 $ 33,296,763
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NOTE 9 — LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (continued)

Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation

The District implemented GASB No. 4Bccounting and Financial Reporting by EmployersPastemployment
Benefits Other Than Pension¥he District’s annual required contribution, for the yeraded June 30, 2017, was
$133,116 and contributions made by the District during the year $4818. Interest on the net OPEB
obligation was $1,279, and the adjustment to annual required contributo($W@45); which resulted in a net
OPEB liability (asset) for 2017 of $28,429. See Note 10 fiitwnal information regarding the OPEB
Obligation and the postemployment plan.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The District provides postemployment health care benefitsligible retirees in accordance with negotiated
contracts with various bargaining units of the District. Th&triat implemented the new reporting requirements
of GASB Statement No. 48\ ccounting and Financial Report by Employers fostemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions (OPERYyospectively for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010.

Plan Description

The plan is a single-employer OPEB defined benefit healthcameaplainistered by the Palo Verde Community
College District. The plan provides postemployment medical beneétggible retirees and their dependents.

Funding Policy

The contribution requirements are established and may be amendeel District and the District’'s bargaining
units. The plan is currently funded on a projected pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) (mgtense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuaridtermined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC representslafgunding that, if paid on an ongoing basis,
is projected to cover normal costs each year and amartizeinfunded actuarial accrued liabilities (UAAL) (or
funding excess over a period not to exceed thirty years. TtddDhas elected to amortize the unfunded liability
over thirty years.

The following table shows the components of the District's ann&&BDcost for the year, the amount actually
contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's net OPEB obligatibe Plan:

Annual required contribution $ 133,116
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,279
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,745)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 132,650
Contributions made (16,918)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 115,732
Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year 28,429
Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of y $ 144,16:
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NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates ofiéthee of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the futurexangples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts de¢ermegarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer arecsubjcontinual revision as actual results are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are madéhabfutire. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary information following thesrio the financial statements, presents trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assétereasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes aredban the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefitded at the time of each valuation
and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs leivilee employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques thigisapeed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuavialue of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective
of the calculations.

In the April, 2016 actuarial valuation, the entry age normahatetvas used. The actuarial assumptions included
a 4.5% percent investment rate of return (net of adminigtratkpenses), based on the plan being funded in an
irrevocable employee benefit trust invested in a long-texadfincome portfolio. Healthcare cost increases were
estimated at 4 percent annually. The UAAL is being amattatea level dollar method. There is no actuarial
value of assets because those funds have not been placed in@ablevrust. The District has earmarked funds
held in the County Treasury for funding of the OPEB obligmbtiat has not elected to place those assets in an
irrevocable trust; therefore, there is no actuarial value of plarsasset

NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer defineefibpension plans maintained by agencies
of the State of California. Certificated employees arenbers of the State Teachers’ Retirement System
(CalSTRS) and classified employees are members of thifor@el Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). The District reported its proportionate shatbehet pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred
outflow of resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the alaos as follows:

Deferred Deferred
Net Outflows Related Inflows Related
Pension Liability to Pensions to Pensions Pension Expense
CalSTRS $ 8,023,463 $ 1,057,429 $ (146,154) $ 1,692,069
CalPERS 4,254,938 1,881,594 (572,976) 144,695
$ 12,278,40 $ 2,939,02. $ (719,130 $ 1,836,76
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Benefits Paid

CalSTRS and CalPERS provides service retirement and digddgtiefits, annual cost of living adjustments and
death benefits to plan members. Benefits are based on gfearsdited service, equal to one year full-time
employment. Members with five years of total service dggbdd for retirement benefits. Employees hired after
January 1, 2013 (PEPRA) are eligible to retire at age 62 fonaldrenefits or at age 55 with statutorily reduced
benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2013 (nhon-PEPRA)ligitdeeto retire at age 60 for normal
benefits or at age 55 with statutorily reduced benefits. m&linbers are eligible for non-duty disability benefits
after 10 years of service. All members are eligible for deatifiteeatter one year of service.

CalSTRS

Plan Description

The District contributes to the California State TeachHeesirement System (CalSTRS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit@eptin administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor bendditdbeneficiaries. Benefit provisions are

established by State statutes, as legislatively amendedn ulithi State Teachers’ Retirement Law. CalSTRS
issues a separate comprehensive annual financial repdrtintlades financial statements and required
supplementary information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual fialangport may be found on the CalSTRS

website under Publications &ttp://www.calstrs.com/member-publications

Contributions

Active 2% at 60 Non-PEPRA members and active 2% at 62 PHER&AmMembers are required to contribute
10.25 and 9.205 percent of their salary, respectively, and thecDistriequired to contribute an actuarially

determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions usedefionidimg the rate are those adopted by
CalSTRS Teachers’ Retirement Board. The required emptmym@ribution rate for fiscal year 2016-2017 was
12.58 percent of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amoamtvthen combined with employee

contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefitsgegnemployees during the year, with an additional
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.

CalPERS

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under theodailif Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employaemnt system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disabitigfits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benafisions are established by State statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees’ Retiremeatvs. CalPERS issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report that includes financtainséants and required supplementary information.
Copies of the CalPERS’ annual financial report can be found on afitERS website under Forms and
Publications athttps://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/forms-publications

Contributions

Active 2% at 60 Non-PEPRA members and 2% at 62 PEPRA plan mearearequired to contribute 7.0 percent
and 6.0 percent of their salary, respectively, and the Distrigquired to contribute an actuarially determined
rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used for deterrtirimgte are those adopted by the CalPERS
Board of Administration. The required employer contribution ratdigoal year 2016-2017 was 13.888 percent
of annual payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when remnbiith employee contributions, is
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by employdag the year, with an additional amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability.
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows$nflows of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2017, the District reported net pension liabilitiesité proportionate shares of the net pension
liability of each plan as follows:

Proportionate

Share of
Net Pensio
Liability
CalSTRS $ 8,023,463
CalPERS 4,254,938
Total Net Pension Liabili $12,278,40

The net pension liability was measured as of Jn@€@16, and the total pension liability used ticdate the net
pension liability was determined by an actuaridustion as of that date. The District's proportiohthe net
pension liability was based on a projection of Bistrict's long-term share of contributions to thension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all papating districts, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pendiability for each plan as of June 30, 2016 ande 30, 2017
were as follows:

CalSTRS
District's State' Total Fo
Proportionate Proportionate District
Share Share Employees CalPERS
Proportion June 30, 2016 0.0102% 0.0051% 0.0153% 0%218
Proportion June 30, 20 0.0099v% 0.0054Y% 0.0153% 0.0215%
Change in Proportion -0.0003% 0.0003% 0.0000% -0.0002%

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the Districtgreized CalSTRS pension expense of $1,692,069 alREGS
pension expense of $144,695. At June 30, 201 Disteict reported deferred outflows of resourced deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from dilwing sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources Deferred Inflows eSBurces
CalSTRS CalPERS Total CalSTRS CalPERS Total
Pension contributions subsequent
to measurement date $ 674,896 $ 454,772 $ 1,129,668 $ - $ - $

Differences between actual and

expected experience - 216,872 216,872 (1,515) - (1,515)
Changes in assumptions - - (159,020) (159,020)
Changes in employer's -

proportionate share 380,248 125,599 505,847 (144,639) (25,507) (170,146)
Net difference between projected - -

and actual earnings 2,285 1,084,351 1,086,636 - (388,449) (388,449)
Total

$ 1,057,429 $ 1,881,594 $ 2,939,023 $ (146,154) $ (572,976) $ (719,130)
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

$1,129,668 reported as deferred outflows of ressurelated to pensions resulting from District dontions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recedjiaiz a reduction of the net pension liabilityhie year ended
June 30, 2018. The remaining amounts reportedeéerdd outflows of resources and deferred inflas
resources related to pension will be recognizedragcrease or decrease to pension expense owa gefir
period. Pension expense resulting from deferrefiioses and deferred inflows or resources will beagnized as
follows:

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2016uadal valuation was determined by applying upgateedures
to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015,rallithg forward the pension liability to June 3®1B using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to allipds included in the measurement:

STRS PERS
Valuation date June 30, 2015 June 30, 2015
Measurement date June 30, 2016 June 30, 2016
Actuarial cost methc Entry age norm: Entry age normi
Discount rate 7.6% 7.65%
Investment rate of return 7.6% 7.65%
Consumer price inflation 3.0% 2.75%
Wage growt 3.75% 3.0%

CalSTRS
CalSTRS uses mortality tables to best fit the patterns dfatitpramong its members. These custom tables are
based on RP2000 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments teasided using a building-block method

in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real ratestwh (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each magtr dass. The best estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS gemerstment consultant. Based on the model
for CalSTRS consulting actuary’s investment practice, a é&ghate range was determined by assuming the
portfolio is re-balanced annually and that the annual returnbbgnermally distributed and independent from
year to year to develop expected percentiles for the long-temdiiin of annualized returns.

CalPERS

Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resultmmg the most recent CalPERS experience study
adopted by the CalPERS Board. For purposes of the post-retirerogatityn rates, those revised rates include
five years of projected ongoing mortality improvements using Scale AAspell by the Society of Actuaries.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERSittmlaccount both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pensiortdghdlows. Using historical returns of all the
funds’ assets classes, expected compound returns were calavatetthe short-term (first ten years) and the
long-term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach. Usingdpected nominal returns for both short-term
and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculatezhéh fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the single equivalent expected return thateatrat the same present value of benefits for cash flows
as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term retiims.expected rate of return was then set
equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above@amdled down to the nearest one quarter or one
percent.
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmett mates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table

CalSTRS CalPERS

Assumed Long Term Assumed Real Real

Allocation  Expected Allocation Return Return
Asset Clas 6/30/201! Return’ Asset Clas 6/30/201  Yrs 1-10(1 Yrs 11+(2
Global Equity 47.00% 6.30% Global Equity 51.00% 5.25% 5.71%
Fixed Income 12.00% 0.30% Global Debt Sec. 20.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Real Estate 13.00% 5.20% Inflation Assets 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equit 13.00% 9.30% Private Equit 10.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Absolute Return 9.00% 2.90% Real Estate 10.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Inflation Sensitive 4.00% 3.80% Infrastructure 2.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Cash/Liquidity 2.00% -1.00%  Liquidity 1.00% -0.55% -1.05%
*20 year geometric average used for long term ebegec (1) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for ghésiod
real rate of return. (2) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for thisipdr

Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabdgy/% percent for STRS and 7.65 percent for PERS.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discountaszigmed that employee contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from sdistitts will be made at contractually
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumgi®pgnsion plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected futuneefie payments of current and inactive employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plannerds was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of theNet Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share @it pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.6 percent and 7.65 percent for STRS and PERS, resphedcs well as what the District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were caladatising a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate for each plan:

CalSTRS CalPERS
1% Decrease 6.60% 6.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 11,547,575 $ 6,348,390
Current Discount Ra 7.60% 7.65%
Net Pension Liability $ 8,023,463 $ 4,254,938
1% Increase 8.60% 8.65%
Net Pension Liabilit $ 5,096,54. $ 2,511,721
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NOTE 11 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net posi@vailable in the separately issued CalSTRS
and CalPERS financial reports.

Social Security

As established by Federal law, all public sector employdes are not members of their employer’s existing
retirement systems (CalSTRS or CalPERS) must be cobgredcial security or an alternative plan. The District
has elected to use Social Security as its alternative plan.

On Behalf Payments

The State of California makes contributions to CalSTRS onlbehéhe District. These payments consist of
State General Fund contributions to CalSTRS of approximately $403®8948% of salaries subject to
CalSTRS). Contributions are no longer appropriated in timeia Budget Actfor the legislatively mandated
benefits to CalPERS. Therefore, there is no on behalf cotidrbuate for CalPERS. Under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of Amethese amounts are to be reported as revenues and
expenditures. Accordingly, these amounts have been recorded in thesalfstatements.

NOTE 12 — FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The following schedule details the functional classificatidrth® operating expenses reported in the statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Supplies, Materials

Salaries and & Other Expenses Payments
Benefits & Services Utilities to Students Depreciation otal

Admissions and records $ 370,805 % 48,536 $ - $ 419,341
Ancillary services 32,898 26,591 59,489
Auxilliary operations 1,285 155,311 156,596
Community services 896 896
General institutional support services 1,700,665 709,963 2,410,628
Instructional activities 7,673,241 1,359,236 338,948 9,371,425
Instructional administration 951,563 449,336 1,400,899
Instructional support services 207,713 41,464 249,177
Planning, policy making, coordinatio
general support 624,788 305,293 930,081
Plant operations and maintenance 491,010 949,691 1,440,701
Student services-counseling and guidance 1,067,459 314,694 1,382,153
Students services-other 1,335,477 435,181 1,770,658
Transfers and student payments 1,312,882 - 1,312,882
Depreciation 1,818,689 1,818,689

$ 14,456,904 $ 4,796,192 $ 338,948 $ 1,312,882 $ 1,818,689 $ 22,723,615

38



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2017

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Grants

The District has received State and Federal funds forfappairposes that are subject to review and audit by the
grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expeysditisallowances under terms of the grants, it is
believed that any required reimbursement will not be material.

Litigation

The District is currently involved in claims relating tmgoyee matters and various construction claims on the
Fine and Performing Arts Project, and intends to vigorously cotfitesé claims. While the ultimate liability, if
any, arising from these claims cannot be predicted with ogrtdhe District believes that the resolution of these
matters will not likely have a material effect on the Distridtsuficial statements.

NOTE 14 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theftrogg#ato, and destruction of assets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disastélge District's risk management activities are
recorded in the General Fund. The District participates in varioui gurity risk pools (JPAS) for its health and
welfare benefits, workers’ compensations benefits, and propabilitly insurance. Refer to Note 15 for
additional information regarding the JPAs.

NOTE 15— PARTICIPATION IN PUBLIC ENTITY RISK POOLS AND JO INT POWERS AUTHORITIES

Palo Verde Community College District participates in fivi@t ventures under joint powers agreements (JPAS):
Community Colleges of Riverside County Self Insurance Progoar&mployees (CCRCSIPE), Schools Excess
Liability Fund (SELF), Riverside Schools Insurance Authority (§SRiverside County Employer/Employee
Partnership for Benefits Plan (REEP) and Riverside Schools R&agement Association (RSRMA). The
relationships between the District and JPA's are suchhbatRA’s are not a component unit of the Palo Verde
Community College District for financial reporting purposes.

These entities have budgeting and financial reporting requitsmeadependent of member units and their
financial statements are not presented in these financiahwats; however, fund transactions between the
entities and the District are included in these statem@wnidited financial statements are available from the
respective entities.

NOTE 17 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The District has evaluated subsequent events through Decemb207, which is the date these financial
statements were issued. All subsequent events requiringigongas of June 30, 2017, have been incorporated
into these financial statements herein.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Funding Progress
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Actuarial
Accrued
Unfunded
Liability Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial (Entry Age Accrued Percentage
Actuarial Value Normal Liability Funding Covered of
of Assets Cost Method) Covered
Valuation Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
March 1, 2010 $ - $ 926,335 $ 926,335 0.00% $ 9,223,000 10.04%
April 1, 2013 $ - $ 1,555,904 $ 1,555,904 0.00% $ 6,899,178 22.55%
April 1, 2016 $ - 8 1,274,465 $ 1,274,465 0.00% $ 7,644,255 16.67%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Shareheflllet Pension Liability
For the Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017*

201¢ 201¢ 2017
PERS STRE PERS STRS PERS STRSE
District's proportion of the net pension
liability (asset) 0.0199% 0.0054% 0.0218% 0.0102% 0.0215% 0.0099%
District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) $ 2,260,983 $8,023,463 $3,207,479 $6,859,372 $4,254,938 $8,023,463

District's covered-employee payroll  $ 2,419,879 $5,364,833 $2,608,897 $4,928,639 $3,274,568 $ 5,364,833

District's proportionate share of the net
pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll 93.43% 149.56% 122.94% 139.17% 129.94% 149.56%

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total pension
liability 83.38% 70.04% 79.43% 74.02% 73.90% 70.04%

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementatiberefore only three years are shown

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of the District’'s Pension Contributions
For the Three Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2017*

201¢ 201¢ 2017
PERS STRE PERS STRE PERS STRE

Contractually required contribution $ 284,844 $ 418,101 $ 309,076 $ 528,843 $ 454,772 $ 674,896

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution 284,844 418,101 309,076 528,843 454,772 674,896

Contribution deficiency (exces $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

District's covered-employee payroll $2,419,879 $ 4,708,34% 2,608,897 $4,928,639 $3,274,568 $ 5,364,833

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 11.771% 8.880% 11.847% 10.730% 13.888% 12.580%

*Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementatiberefore only three years are shown

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

History and Organization
June 30, 2017

ORGANIZATION

The Palo Verde Community College was established in 1947 @athbea separate district in 1973. The District
is located in the eastern portion of Riverside County. Theai@isthnexed the City of Needles during 1999.
There were no other changes to the boundaries of the Districgdbe year. The District operates a campus in
Blythe, California and a campus in Needles, California. Th&iEliselocated to its newly constructed campus in
Blythe in August, 2001.

The District provides the first two years of instruction $fenable to accredited four-year colleges and
universities, as well as vocational and technical education.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The District is governed by a Board of Trustees, consistiffiy@fmembers, who are elected to staggered four-
year terms. The members and officers of the Board of Trustees, as 80J@34.7, were as follows:

Member Office Term Expires
George Thomas President 2018
Suzanne Woods Vice-President 2018
Edmundo Gonzales Clerk 2020
Brad Arneson Trustee 2018
Jerry Lewis Trustee 2018
Stella Camargo-Styers Trustee 2020
Debra Mitchell Trustee 2020
Sunil Lal Student Trustee 2018

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION

Donald G. Wallace, Ph.D. Superintendent/President
Maureen Davis Interim Vice President AdministeaBervices
Sean Hancock Vice-President of Instructional ardegtiBervices

See the accompanying note to the supplementary information.
45



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Federal Pass
Grantor/Pass- Through
Through CFDA Identifying Federal
Grantor/Program Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Student Financial Assistance Clustdj:

Federal Pell Grants 84.063 $ 969,755
Federal Pell Administrative 84.063 1,370
Federal Supplement Education Opportunity (FSEOG) 0GA. 42,385
Federal Work Study Progrm (FWS) 84.033 33,670

Subtotal Student Financial Assistance Cluster 1,047,180

CAREER AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION ACT
Passed through from the California Communityl€ygs Chancellor's Office
Career and Technical Education, Title 1-C 84.048 02-G38 126,030

Total U.S. Department of Education 1,173,210

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF) 93.558 30,811

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 30,811

U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed through California Department of Education

Child Care Food Program 10.558 * 34,178
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 34,178
Total Federal Expenditures $ 1,238,199

[1]: Major Program

*Passthrough Identifying number not available

See the accompanying note to the supplementary information.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Total
Cash Accounts Deferred Program
Program Name Received Receivable Income Total Expenditures
Adult Basic Education Grant (AB86) $ 773,016 $ - $ (8,724)% 781,740 $ 781,740
Basic Skills & Initiative 90,000 - (24436 114,864 114,864
California Work Opportunity & Responsibility to 134,456 (27,116) 161,572 161,572
Cooperative Agencies & Resources for Education 60,991 - - 60,991 60,991
Disabled Students Programs & Services 179,649 - (31,b19 210,668 210,668
Extended Opportunity Programs & Services 470,455 - - 470,455 470,455
Instructional Equip/Scheduled Maintenance 313,887 - 87,345 226,542 226,542
Student Success-Credit 694,216 - (21,985) 716,201 716,201
Student Success-Non Credit 38,625 - 38,625 - -
Student Equity 250,000 (92,775) 342,775 342,775
Strengthening Career Technical Education 43,788 - 4,301 39,487 39,487
Student Financial Aid Administration 154,467 - 19,222 135,245 135,245
Lottery 62,933 - - 62,933 62,933
TANF 29,263 29,263 29,263
Prop 39 23,000 23,000 23,000
Full Time Student Success 14,494 14,494 14,494
Strong Workforce Program 234,242 - - 234,242 234,242
$ 3567,482 % - % (56,990) $ 3,624,472 $ 3,624,472

See the accompanying note to the supplementary information.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Workload Measure(s) for State General Apportionment Axatah() Attendance

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

A. Summer Intersession {@mer 2016 only
1. Noncredit
2. Credit
B. Summer IntersessioBymmer 2017 - Prior to July 1, 2017
1. Noncredit
2. Credit
C. Primary TermsHxclusive of Summer Intersesion)
1. Census Procedure Courses
(a) Weekly Census Contact Hours
(b) Daily Census Contact Hours
2. Actual Hours of Attendance
(a) Noncredit
(b) Credit
3. Alternative Attendance Accounting Procedure
(a) Weekly Census Contact Hours
(b) Daily Census Contact Hours
(c) Noncredit Independent Study/Distance Education Courses

Total FTES

Total Credit FTES
Total Noncredit FTES
Total FTES

Supplemental Informatiorsbset of above information)
In-Service Training Courses
Basic Skills Courses & Immigrant Education

1. Noncredit

2. Credit

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Reconciliation ofEducation Codéection 84362 (50 Percent Law) Calculation
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

ESC 84362 A
Instructional Salary Cost

AC 0100 - and AC 6110

ECS 84362 B
Total CEE

AC 0100 - 6799

Object | Reported | Audit Revised Reported Audit Revised
Codes Data Adj Data Data Adj Data
Instructional Salaries

Contract or Regular 1100 $ 3,226,588 $ 3,226,588 $ 3,226,588 $ 3,226,588

Other 1300 747,982 747,982 747,982 747,982
Total Instructional Salaries 3,974,570 3,974,570 3,974,570 3,974,570
Non-Instructional Salaries

Contract or Regular 1200 921,905 921,905

Other 1400 38,468 38,468
Total Non-Instructional Salaries 960,373 960,373
Total Academic Salaries 3,974,570 3,974,570 4,934,943 4,934,943

Classified Salaries
Non-Instructional Salaries

Regular Status 2100 2,613,601 2,613,601

Other 2300 57,244 57,244
Total Non-Instructional Salaries 2,670,845 2,670,845
Instructional Aides

Regular Status 2200 - - -

Other 2400 - - - R
Total Instructional Aides - - - -
Total Classified Salaries - - 2,670,845 2,670,845
Employee Benefits 3000 1,322,054 1,322,054 2,674,584 2,674,584
Supplies and Materials 4000 92,467 92,467
Other Operating Expenses 5000 1,751,223 1,751,223 3,585,567 3,585,567
Equipment Replacement 6420
Total Expenditures Prior to Exclusions 7,047,847 7,047,847 13,958,406 13,958,406

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Reconciliation ofEducation Codéection 84362 (50 Percent Law) Calculation, Continued
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

ESC 84362 A
Instructional Salary Cost
AC 0100 - and AC 6110

ECS 84362 B
Total CEE
AC 0100 - 6799

Object Reported |Audit Revised Reported Audit Revised
Codes Data Adj Data Data Adj Data
Activities to Exclude
Instructional Staff -
Retirees’ Benefits and Retirement 5900 110,648 110,648 110,648 110,648
Student Health Services Above Amount 6441
Student Transportation 6491 18,960 18,960
Non-Instructional Staff -
Retirees’ Benefits and Retirement 6740 59,058 59,058
Objects to Exclude
Rents and Leases 5060 329,401 329,401
Lottery Expenditures
Academic Salaries 1000
Classified Salaries 2000
Employee Benefits 3000
Supplies and Materials 4000
Software 4100
Books, Magazines, & Periodicals 4200
Instructional Supplies & Materials 4300
Noninstructional, Supplies & Materials 4400
Total Supplies and Materials
Other Operating Expenses and Services 5000 - -
Capital Outlay 6000
Library Books 6300
Equipment 6400
Equipment - Additional 6410
Equipment - Replacement 6420
Total Equipment
Total Capital Outlay
Other Outgo 7000
Total Exclusions 110,648 110,648 518,067 518,067
Total for ECS 84362, 50% Law $ 6,937,199 $ 6,937,199 $ 13,440,339 $ 13,440,339
Percent of CEE (Instructional Salary Cost / Total CEE) 51.61% 51.61% 100% 100%
50% of Current Expense of Education $ 6,720,169 $ 6,720,170

See the accompanying note to supplementary information.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Reconciliation of Education Protection Account Funds (EPA)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Activity Classification Object Code Unrestricted
8630
EPA Proceeds: $ 2,295,600
Salaries and Operating Capital
Benefits Expenses Outlay
Activity
Activity Classification Code (Obj 1000-3000) | (Obj 4000-5000) |  (Obj 6000) Total
Instructional Activities 0100-5900 $ 2,295,600 2,295,600
Total Expenditures for EPA $ 2,295,600 - 2,295,600
Revenues Less Expenditures $ -

See the accompanying note to supplementary information
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2017

Total Fund Balance and Retained Earnings:

General Funds $ 5,085,418
Special Revenue Funds 6,303
Capital Outlay Projects 3,943,905
Debt Service Funds 1,195,558
Proprietary Funds 290,735
Internal Service Funds 1,620,923
Fiduciary Funds 70,123
Total Fund Balances and Retained Earnings - All Disict Funds $ 12,212,965

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in theStatement of Ne
Position are Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activitiematdinancial resources ai
therefore, are not reported as assets in goverahfends.

The cost of capital assets is 80,090,967
Accumulated depreciation is (18,061,339)
Net Capital Assets 62,029,628

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relatingpenions: In governmental funds,
deferred outflows and inflows of resources relatimgensions are not reported because
they are applicable to future periods. In theestent of net position, deferred outflows ¢
inflows of resources relating to pensions are riabr

Deferred outflows of resources relating to pensions 2,939,023
Deferred inlows of resources relating to pensions (719,130) 2,219,893

In governmental tunds, deferred intlows and deteatiiows ot resources resulting rc

defeasance of debt are not recorded. In goverrahedivities, for advance refundings

resulting in defeasance of debt reported in govemtal activities, the difference between

reacquisition price and the net carrying amourthefretired debt are reported as deferred

outflows of resources. 717,646

Other long-term assets, such as notes receivael@oh available to pay current peri
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in tirergonental funds 299,17€

Amounts held in trust on behalf of others (Trust &gency Funds) (65,715)

In governmental funds, debt issuance costs argnéoed as expenditures in the period 1
are incurred. In the government-wide statemertist bsuance costs are amortized ove
life of the debt. 165,631

In governmental funds, unmatured interest on l@rgitobligations is recogniz
in the period when it is due. On the governmerttesiinancial statements,
unmatured interest on long-term obligations is gaézed when it is incurred. (275,731)

See the accompanying note to supplementary information
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Positiotinfoed)

June 30, 2017

Long-term obligations, including bonds payable,msedue and payable in
current period and, therefore, are not reportdéhbiities in the funds.

Long-term obligations at year-end consist of:
Bonds payable
Certificates of participation
Auto loan
Net pension liability
Compensated absences (vacations)
Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
Total Long-Term Obligations
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities

See the accompanying note to supplementary information
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(16,897,645)
(14,155,000)
(15,303)
(12,278,401)
(283,719)

(144,161)

$

(43,774,229)

33,529,264



PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Note to Supplementary Information
June 30, 2017

PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

History and Organization — This schedule provides information about the District’suization, members of
the governing board, and administration members.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards- The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards includes the Federal grant activity of the Distaiotl is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting.  The information in this schedule is presentedciordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Federal Regulation®art 200Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Princgpdand Audit Requirementsr
Federal Awards Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule mayfaiffeamounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the financial statements. ThdadDis#ts not elected to use the ten percent de minimis
cost rate as covered in Section 200.414 Indirect (F&A) costs of the Uniformr@aida

Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards- The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards
includes the State grant activity of the District and iss@néed on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differafmwunts presented in, or used in the
preparation of, the financial statements. The information instfiedule is presented to comply with reporting
requirements of the California State Chancellor’'s Office.

Schedule of Workload Measures for State General Apportioment Annual (Actual) Attendance— FTES is a
measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of thtDisThe purpose of attendance accounting
from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which agmonints of State funds, including restricted
categorical funding, are made to community college districtsis §chedule provides information regarding the
annual attendance measurements of students throughout the District.

Reconciliation of Education CodeSection 84362 (50 percent Law) Calculatiorr ECS 84362 requires the
District to expend a minimum of 50 percent of the unrestricted GeRend monies on salaries of classroom
instructors. This is reported annually to the State ChianseDffice. This schedule provides a reconciliation of
the amount reported to the State Chancellor's Office and theciropany audit adjustments and/or corrections
noted during the audit.

Reconciliation of Education Protection Account Funds— This schedule provides the District's summary of
receipts and uses of the monies received through the EPA.

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds to the Statement of & Position — This schedule provides a
reconciliation of the adjustments necessary to bring the &istmternal fund financial statements, prepared on a
modified accrual basis, to the entity-wide full accrual bfasancial statements required under GASB Statements
No. 34 and No. 35 business-type activities reporting model.

54



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS




M Messner
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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTSPERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District
Blythe, California

We have audited, in accordance with auditing statsdgenerally accepted in the United States of Aga@md the standards
applicable to financial audits contained3overnment Auditing Sandards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the basic financial statements of the bastype activities and the fiduciary activitiesRaflo Verde Community
College District (the “District”), as of and fordtyear ended June 30, 2017, and the related maties financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’'s basiodincial statements and have issued our reportahei@ed December 21,
2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the final&tatements, we considered the District’s intlecoatrol over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the aymibcedures that are appropriate in the circumstafar the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statemdntsnot for the purpose of expressing an opimiorihe effectiveness
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly,erdo not express an opinion on the effectivenesiseoDistrict’s internal
control.

A deficiency ininternal control exists when the design or operation of a contoelschot allow management or employees,
in the normal course of performing their assignaacfions, to prevent, or detect and correct, ntissiants on a timely
basis. Amaterial weaknessis a deficiency, or combination of deficienciesiriternal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of thetiizgs financial statements will not be preventeddetected and corrected,
on a timely basis. Aignificant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficienci@sinternal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet importantgdntmumerit attention by those charged with govecea

Our consideration of internal control over finahegporting was for the limited purpose describethie first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify afiaiencies in internal control that might be matkweaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitatiodsying our audit, we did not identify any deficoées in internal control
that we consider to be material weaknesses. Waeaddidtify certain deficiencies in internal contrdescribed in the
accompanying schedule of Findings and questionsts$ ¢bhat we consider to be significant deficiencgese finding 2017-
001.

17072 Silica Drive, Suite 101 * Victorville * California 92395
(760) 241-6376 * Fax (760) 241-2011
messner andhadley.com



The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether thietRiginancial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance wittaioeprovisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a dirdctaterial effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on comgliaitb those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express suchiminrap The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are rdqtirebe reported undeGovernment Auditing
Standards

Response to Finding

Palo Verde Community College District's (the “District’@sponse to the finding identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned ddssDistrict’'s response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofrthecial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scopardesting of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provideraonopn the effectiveness of the District's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integeat of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards considering the District’s internal control and complianéecordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

7775@4@1) £ /2/44&7, LLE,

Messner & Hadley, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Victorville, California
December 21, 2017
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Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District
Blythe, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Palo Verde Community College Ritsri(the “District”) compliance with the types ebmpliance
requirements described in OMEBmpliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect aned the District’s
major Federal programs for the year ended Jun@@D7. The District's major Federal programs amntiied in the
Summary of Auditors’ Results section of the acconyjrag Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with thguirements of federal statutes, regulations, fedtérms and
conditions of federal awards.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on clamge for each of the District's major Federalgnams based on our
audit of the types of compliance requirements refkto above. We conducted our audit of complianeecordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the UiStates of America; the standards applicable snfiral audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the Uniteate3t; and Title 2).S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200,Uniform Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Umif@uidance require that we plan and perform thet aod
obtain reasonable assurance about whether non@moglivith the types of compliance requirementsmedeo above that
could have a direct and material effect on a maguteral program occurred. An audit includes examiron a test basis,
evidence about the District’'s compliance with thosguirements and performing such other procedasese consider
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonablés Bas our opinion on compliance for each major émdl program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal deteation of the District’s compliance.

17072 Silica Drive, Suite 101 * Victorville * @lifornia 92395
(760) 241-6376 * Fax (760) 241-2011
messnerandhadley.com



The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Palo Verde Community College District, compliedallnmaterial respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could haveeet dind material effect on each of its major
Federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishind maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referrdabigea In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the District’'s internal contr@racompliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each majderiaé program to determine the auditing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressinginion on compliance for each major
Federal program and to test and report on internal control @repliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the efiessvef internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effeeigef the District’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over complianegists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal coursdasfrpag their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance reguiteof a Federal program on a timely
basis. Amaterial weakness in internal control over compdiais a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance, such that there is a rebopassibility that material noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a Federal program will notéespted, or detected and corrected, on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over cphance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a typeoohpliance requirement of a Federal program that
is less severe than a material weakness in internal taten compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance washieditmited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficienni@sternal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We dididesttify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. Howeaterial weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliancelédysto describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that tediampd on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

7775@4@1) £ /2/44&7, LLE,

Messner & Hadley, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Victorville, California
December 21, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District
Blythe, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Palo Verde Community College [is¢rithe “District”) compliance with the state lawnd regulations
in accordance with Section 400 of the Chancell@ffce’s California Community Colleges Contractedsttict Audit
Manual (CDAM) for the year ended June 30, 2017iasded our report thereon December 21, 2017.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the compliance with requirements of State laws and regulations,tb@derms and
conditions identified in the California Communitylges Chancellor's Office District Audit Manuasued in March
2017.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on cliamge of each of the District’'s programs basedanaudit of the types

of compliance requirements referred to above. Weacted our audit in accordance with auditing daats generally
accepted in the United States of America and #edstrds applicable to financial audits containe@awer nment Auditing
Sandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Unitealtes, and the standards and procedures identifitioe
California Community Colleges Chancellor’'s Offibéstrict Audit Manual issued March 2017. These standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reablEnassurance about whether noncompliance witlcdhgpliance
requirements referred to above could have a maeffiect on the applicable programs noted belown atudit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about theri@ist compliance with those requirements and penfog such
procedures as we consider necessary in the ciranget. We believe that our audit provides a redserbasis for our
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal deteation of the District's compliance with those vagments.

17072 Silica Drive, Suite 101 * Victorville * @lifornia 92395
(760) 241-6376 * Fax (760) 241-2011
messnerandhadley.com



Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Programs

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respeeit) the compliance requirements referred to above
that are applicable to the programs noted below that were auditeé ferahended June 30, 2017.

The Board of Trustees
Palo Verde Community College District

In connection with out audit referred to above, we selected amd t']ansactions and records to determine the
District's compliance with State laws and regulations in atamre with Section 400 of the Chancellor’s Office’s
California Community College Contracted District Audit Manual (DA

Section 421 Salaries of Classroom Instructors (50 Percent Law)

Section 423 Apportionment for Instructional Service Agreements/Contract
Section 424 State General Apportionment Funding System

Section 425 Residency Determination for Credit Courses

Section 426 Students Actively Enrolled

Section 427 Concurrent Enrollment of K-12 Students in Community Collesgit Courses
Section 428 Student Equity

Section 429 Student Success and Support Program (SSSP)

Section 430 Scheduled Maintenance Program

Section 431 Gann Limit Calculation

Section 435 Open Enrollment

Section 439 Prop 39 Clean Energy Fund

Section 440 Intersession Extension Program

Section 475 Disabled Student Programs and Services (DSPS)

Section 479 To Be Arranged (TBA) Hours

Section 490 Proposition 1D State Bond Funded Projects

Section 491 Proposition 30 Education Protection Account Funds

Purpose of This Report

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Distri@nhagement, the Board of Trustees, and
others within the District, the California Community ColsgChancellor’s Office, the California Department of
Finance, and the California Department of Education, and is natedeto be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

777@«:&;@0 £ /Z/dﬁlfﬂf, ZLEF,

Messner & Hadley, LLP
Certified Public Accountants

Victorville, California
December 21, 2017
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2017

SECTION 1 - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? Yes
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with
Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 2, Part 200, Section .510(a)? No
Identification of major programs:
Name of Federal Program ol
CEDA Numbers Cluster
84.007,84.032,84.063 Student Financial Aid Cluster
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
STATE AWARDS
Internal control over State programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? No
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for State programs: Unmodified
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2017

SECTION 2 — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

2017-001

Annual Financial and Budget ReportQCFS-311) (Significant deficiency)

Criteria  Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Sfatenerica, as prescribed by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, require ertitiestablish and maintain effective
internal control over financial reporting to prepare timely, adeuiaancial reports.

Condition  The Annual Financial and Budget Report (CCFS-311) financidemstnts were
inaccurate and did not completely reconcile to the trial balance.

Questioned Costs None

Context Various financial elements were not accurately stated.

Effect Inaccuracies in District financial statements decrélaseelevance and usefulness of the
financial statements.

Cause The District’s closing process did not ensure that the CCFS-31lcaasiely prepared.
Recommendation The District should ensure that the CCFS-311 is reconciled etehplo the

trial balance to ensure that accurate, timely informatiorerted to the users of the financial
information.

District Response The District has input steps to train staff to resdhi® in the future as well as
implementing a detailed reviewing of the CCFS-311.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2017

SECTION 3 — FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned cost$ teethie federal awards.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2017

SECTION 4 — STATE AWARDS FINDINGS

The results of our tests did not disclose any findings and questioned coet$ tieliie State awards.
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PALO VERDE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

Status of Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2017

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs.

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs.

STATE AWARDS FINDINGS

2016-001 424 - GENERAL APPORTIONMENT FUNDINGSYSTEM
INTERNAL CONTROL (Significant deficiency)

RecommendationWe recommend the District ensure tabulations submitted by idtecDfor apportionment
funding are supported by and agree to attendance records in accordance withtl€ GRS&ctions 58020-58024.
We further recommend that district personnel are adequadihed in the calculation of contact hours and that
all records go through a review process prior to submittal.

Current Status Implemented
2016-002 424-STATE APPORTIONMENT FUNDING SYSTEM

RecommendationWe recommend the District ensure tabulations submitted by itecDfor apportionment
funding are supported by and agree to attendance records in accordance withtl€GR,Sections 58020-58024.
We further recommend that district personnel are adequadited in the calculation of contact hours and that
all records go through a review process prior to submittal.

Current Status Implemented
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